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Ighimo Mike Dewine, Governor 
Jon Husted, Lt. Governor 

Ohio Environmental Laurie A. Stevenson, Director 

Protection Agency 

January 2, 2020 

Ohio Decorative Products, LLC 
c/o Mr. Frank Deveau 
Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP 
One Indiana Square, Suite 3500 
Indianapolis, IN 46204-2023  

Re: Ohio Decorative Products, LLC 
Director's Final Findings and Orders 
(DFFO) 
DFFO 
RCRA C - Hazardous Waste 
Allen County 
OHD005036264 

Subject: Final Findings and Orders of the Director 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Transmitted herewith are the Final Findings and Orders of the Director concerning the 
matter indicated for Ohio Decorative Products, LLC. 

If you have any questions, please contact Sarah Miles at (614) 644-3037. 

Sincerely, 

Tonya And ws, Administrative Professional 3 
Division of Environmental Response & Revitalization 

Enclosure 

cc: Mitch Mathews, DERR, CO 
Don Vogel, DERR, CO 
Erik Hagen, DERR, CO 
Colleen Weaver, DERR, NWDO 
Sarah Miles, Legal 

Central Office • 50 W. Town St. • Suite 700 • P.O. Box 1049 • Colurnbus, OH 43216-1049 
www.epa.ohio.gov • (614) 644-3020 • (614) 644-3184(fax) 
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BEFORE THE 
OHIO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

In the Matter of: 

Ohio Decorative Products, LLC Director's Final 
220 South Elizabeth St. Findings and Orders 
Spencerville, Ohio 45887 

Respondent 

PREAMBLE 

It is agreed by the parties hereto as follows: / 2/23//`1 

I. JURISDICTION 

These Director's Final Findings and Orders (Orders) are issued to Ohio Decorative 
Products, LLC (Respondent), pursuant to the authority vested in the Director of the Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency (Ohio EPA) under Ohio Revised Code (ORC) §§ 
3734.13, 3734.02(G) and 3745.01 and Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) rule 3745-50-31. 

11. PARTIES BOUND 

These Orders shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and successors in 
interest liable under Ohio law. No change in ownership of Respondent or of the Facility 
shall in any way after Respondent's obligations under these Orders. 

111. DEFINITIONS 

Unless otherwise stated, all terms used in these Orders shall have the same 
meaning as defined in ORC Chapter 3734. and the rules promulgated there under. 

IV. FINDINGS 

The Director of Ohio EPA has determined the following findings: 

Pursuant to ORC § 3734.02(G) and rule 3745-50-31 of the OAC, the Director may, 
by order, exempt any person generating, storing, treating, or disposing of 
hazardous waste in such quantities or under such circumstances that, in the 
determination of the Director, it is unlikely that the public health or safety or the 
environment will be adversely affected thereby, from any requirement to obtain a 
permit or comply with other requirements of ORC Chapter 3734. Any such 
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exemption shall be consistent with and equivalent to rules promulgated under the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 90 Stat. 2806, 42 U.S.C. § 
6921 et seq., as amended. 

2. Respondent is a "person" as defined in ORC § 3734.01(G) and Ohio Administrative 
Code (OAC) rule 3745-50-10(A). Respondent is the owner and operator of a 
manufacturing facility that conducted metal plating and produced zinc die cast 
parts for the appliance industry. The property is located at 220 South Elizabeth 
St., Spencerville, Allen County, Ohio (Facility). Respondent operated at the 
Facility since approximately 1970 until ceasing operations in 2011. 

3. From at least 1983 until 2011, the Respondent was a large quantity generator and 
generated hazardous waste copper cyanide solution (F007, D002), waste cleaner 
(D007), spent nickel, chrome, and plating waste water solution (D002, D008, and 
F006), and concentrated liquid from electroplating waste water treatment (F006), 
as defined in 3745-51-22 (corrosivity), 3745-51-24 (toxicity), and OAC rule 3745-
51-31 (listed hazardous waste from non-specific sources). Respondent also 
generated hazardous waste paint related material that carried the waste codes 
D035, F005, and D001, as defined in OAC rules 3745-51-21 (ignitability), 3745-
51-24 (toxicity), and OAC rule 3745-51-31 (listed hazardous waste from non-
specific sources). Due to Respondent's hazardous waste generator activities, 
Respondent applied and was assigned U.S. EPA ID number OHD005036264. 

4. During inspections on April 2, 1985 and December 19, 1991, Ohio EPA observed 
and documented Respondent accumulating hazardous waste generated by the 
Respondent referenced in Finding No. 3. of these Orders. During the inspections, 
Ohio EPA found the following hazardous waste being accumulated in the following 
hazardous waste management units at the Facility, which are located on the map 
attached to and incorporated into these Orders: a container management unit 
where 55-gallon containers holding ignitable and listed (F003 and F005) 
hazardous waste (spent solvents) (described as Unit 1 on the map); an 
aboveground tank storing corrosive and toxic (chromium) hazardous waste 
(described as Unit 2 on the map); and an underground storage tank storing listed 
(F003 and F005) and ignitable hazardous waste (described as Unit 3 on the map). 

5. Ohio EPA informed Respondent of the inspection findings in notices of violation 
dated May 3, 1985 and February 25, 1992. 

6. Due to management of hazardous waste in the units described in Finding No. 4. 
of these Orders, as a generator of hazardous waste subject to OAC rule 3745-52-
34(A), Respondent is required, at a minimum, to close the hazardous waste 
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management units described in Finding No. 4. of these Orders pursuant to the 
closure performance standard described in OAC rule 3745-66-11 for the container 
management units as well as OAC rule 3745-66-97 for the tanks. 

7. On or about August 3, 2016, Respondent performed a voluntary environmental 
audit of the Facility and submitted to Ohio EPA on August 24, 2016 a voluntary 
audit disclosure pursuant to ORC § 3745.72. The voluntary audit disclosure (VAD) 
stated hazardous waste may have been improperly stored at the Facility, and 
subsequently hazardous waste had been characterized and properly shipped 
offsite by Respondent. Containers of hazardous waste are described as having 
been stored in the following four areas at the Facility: the designated hazardous 
waste storage facility; the wastewater treatment room; the filtration room; and the 
plating room, 

8. On September 16, 2016, Ohio EPA conducted an investigation of the Facility in 
response to the VAD. From that date until November 3, 2016, Respondent 
provided hazardous waste manifests showing all hazardous waste had been 
managed offsite to an authorized facility. 

9. Respondent began site investigation activity in November 2016 which continued 
until May 2017. The investigation scope was as follows: 

a. Determine site-specific soil profile and establish groundwater 
occurrence, 

b. Constituents of concern delineation soil borings and sampling; 

c. Monitor well installation and groundwater sampling; 

d. Subsurface utility assessment; 

e. Background soil sample collection; 

f. Vapor migration assessment; and 

g. Building material sampling. 

10. In January 2017, as part of the ongoing investigation, Ohio EPA advised 
Respondent that it would be required to perform sampling under the plating room 
floor and any other areas at the Facility for which closure would be required. 

11. On January 27, 2017, Respondent performed sampling with Ohio EPA oversight 
under the plating room floor at the Facility, and analytical results received by Ohio 
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EPA on February 20, 2017 showed a release of hazardous waste constituents from 
plating operations under the floor. 

12. From January through May 2017, Respondent also detected releases of 
hazardous waste constituents in the wastewater treatment room and the filtration 
room. 

13. In a letter dated July 5, 2017, based upon the information submitted as part of the 
VAD described in Finding No. 7. of these Orders and the information from the 
investigation as described in Finding Nos. 9 through 12. of these Orders, Ohio EPA 
informed Respondent that it, inter alia, violated ORC § 3734.02(E) and (F) for 
storage of hazardous waste in excess of 90 days and disposal of hazardous waste 
without a permit. 

14. On September 5, 2017, Respondent submitted a letter to Ohio EPA stating that 
ODP intends to enter the VAP MOA to pursue site wide cleanup pursuant to those 
requirements, including seeking a NFA/CNS. 

15. Due to Respondent's establishment and operation of a hazardous waste storage 
and disposal facility as described in Finding Nos. 6. and. 13. of these Orders, 
Respondent is required to have a hazardous waste facility and installation permit 
and is subject to all general facility standards found in OAC Chapter 3745-54 and 
55, including but not limited to, closure in accordance with OAC rules 3745-55-11 
through 3745-55-20, the financial assurance for closure requirements contained in 
OAC rules 3745-55-42 through 3745-55-51 and corrective action for waste 
management units in accordance with OAC rule 3745-54-101. To obtain a 
hazardous waste facility installation and operation permit, Respondent is required 
to submit "Parts A and B" of the application in accordance with OAC Chapter 3745-
50. 

16. The submittal of a Closure Plan which complies with the administrative 
requirements of OAC Chapters 3745-65 and 66 and the substantive requirements 
of OAC Chapters 3745-54 and 55 including but not limited to the groundwater 
protection program in accordance with OAC rules 3745-54-90 through 3745-54-
100 in lieu of the submittal of an application for a hazardous waste facility 
installation and operation permit is unlikely to adversely affect the public health or 
safety or the environment. Therefore, the Director finds that the issuance to 
Respondent of an exemption from the requirement to submit an application for a 
hazardous waste facility installation and operation permit is unlikely to adversely 
affect the public health or safety or the environment within the meaning of ORC § 
3734.02(G). 
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V.  ORDERS 

Respondent shall achieve compliance with Chapters 3734. and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder and is hereby exempted from the requirement to submit an 
application for a hazardous waste facility installation and operation permit for the Facility, 
provided that Respondent complies with the following: 

1. Within 90 days after the effective date of these Orders, Respondent shall submit 
to Ohio EPA a Closure Plan for the identified hazardous waste storage and 
disposal areas described in Finding Nos. 4., 6., 11., 12., and 13. of these Orders; 

2. This Closure Plan shall comply with the administrative requirements of OAC 
Chapters 3745-65 and 3745-66 and the substantive requirements of OAC 
Chapters 3745-54 and 3745-55, except for the groundwater protection program in 
accordance with OAC rules 3745-54-90 through 54-100 for the reasons described 
in Finding No. 14 of these Orders and provided Respondent meets the leaching to 
groundwater standards for the constituents of concern within the defined closure 
units; 

3. The Closure Plan is subject to approval by Ohio EPA. If Ohio EPA does not 
approve the Closure Plan referenced in Order No. 2., and provides Respondent 
with a written statement of deficiencies, Respondent shall submit a revised Closure 
Plan for approval addressing the deficiencies within 30 days of receiving such 
written statement. If Ohio EPA modifies the Closure Plan, the modified Closure 
Plan becomes the approved plan; 

4. Upon Ohio EPA approval of the Closure Plan, Respondent shall implement the 
approved Closure Plan in the manner and pursuant to the time frames set forth in 

the approved Closure Plan and OAC rules 3745-55-13/3745-66-13; 

5. Within 120 days after Ohio EPA's approval of the Closure Plan, Respondent shall 
submit a closure cost estimate and documentation demonstrating that Respondent 

has established financial assurance and liability coverage for the area of the 
Facility subject to closure, in accordance with OAC rules 3745-55-42 through 
3745-55-47; and 

6. Within 60 days after completion of closure, Respondent shall submit certification 
of closure to Ohio EPA in accordance with OAC rule 3745-55-15. 
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VI. TERMINATION 

Respondent's obligations under these Orders shall terminate when Respondent 
certifies in writing and demonstrates to the satisfaction of Ohio EPA that Respondent has 
performed all obligations under these Orders and Ohio EPA's Division of Environmental 
Response and Revitalization acknowledges, in writing, the termination of these Orders. 
If Ohio EPA does not agree that all obligations have been performed, then Ohio EPA will 
notify Respondent of the obligations that have not been performed, in which case 
Respondent shall have an opportunity to address any such deficiencies and seek 
termination as described above. 

The certification shall contain the following attestation: "I certify that the information 
contained in or accompanying this certification is true, accurate and complete." 

This certification shall be submitted by Respondent to Ohio EPA and shall be signed by 

a responsible official of Respondent. For purposes of these Orders, a responsible official 

is a corporate officer who is in charge of a principal business function of Respondent. 

VII. OTHER CLAIMS 

Nothing in these Orders shall constitute or be construed as a release from any 

claim, cause of action or demand in law or equity against any person, firm, partnership or 

corporation, not a party to these Orders, for any liability arising from, or related to, the 

operation of Respondent's Facility. 

VIII. OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 

All actions required to be taken pursuant to these Orders shall be undertaken in 

accordance with the requirements of all applicable local, state and federal laws and 

regulations. These Orders do not waive or compromise the applicability and enforcement 

of any other statutes or regulations applicable to Respondent. 

IX. MODIFICATIONS 

These Orders may be modified by agreement of the parties hereto. Modifications 

shall be in writing and shall be effective on the date entered in the journal of the Director 

of Ohio EPA. 

X. NOTICE 

All documents required to be submitted by Respondent pursuant to these Orders 
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shall be addressed to: 

Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 
Northwest District Office 
Division of Environmental Response and Revitalization 
347 N. Dunbridge Road 
Bowling Green, Ohio 43402 
Attn: DERR Hazardous Waste Program Manager 

and Ohio EPA Central Office at the following addresses: 

For mailings, use the post office box number: 

Manager, Hazardous Waste Compliance Assurance Section 
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 
Division of Environmental Response and Revitalization 
P.O, Box 1049 
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1049 

For deliveries to the building: 

Manager, Hazardous Waste Compliance Assurance Section 

Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 
Division of Environmental Response and Revitalization 

50 West Town Street, Suite 700 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

or to such persons and addresses as may hereafter be otherwise specified in writing by 

Ohio EPA. 

XI. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

In the event that a no further action letter is not issued and submitted to Ohio EPA's 

Voluntary Action Program in accordance with OAC rule 3745-300-13 on behalf of 

Respondent, Ohio EPA reserves its rights to exercise its lawful authority to require 

Respondent to perform groundwater investigation and remediation at the Facility in 

accordance with OAC rules 3745-54-90 through 3745-54-100 and corrective action at the 

Facility at some time in the future, pursuant to ORC Chapter 3734 or any other applicable 

law. Respondent reserves its rights to raise any administrative, legal or equitable claim 

or defense with respect to any final action of the Director regarding such groundwater 

investigation and remediation and corrective action. Ohio EPA and Respondent each 
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reserve all other rights, privileges and causes of action, except as specifically waived in 

Section XII. of these Orders. Nothing in these Orders shall be construed either to create 

any rights in or grant any cause of action to any person not a party to these Orders, or to 

release or waive any claim, cause of action, demand, or defense in law or equity that any 

person not a party to these Orders may have against Respondent. 

XII. WAIVER 

In order to resolve disputed claims, without admission of fact, violation or liability, 

and in lieu of further enforcement action by Ohio EPA for only the violations specifically 

cited in these Orders, Respondent consents to the issuance of these Orders and agrees 

to comply with these Orders. Except for the right to require Respondent to perform 

groundwater investigation and remediation in accordance with OAC rules 3745-54-90 

through 3745-54-100 and seek corrective action at the Facility in the event that a no 

further action letter is not issued and submitted to Ohio EPA's Voluntary Action Program 

in accordance with OAC rule 3745-300-13 on behalf of Respondent, which right Ohio 

EPA does not waive, compliance with these Orders shall be a full accord and satisfaction 

for Respondent's liability for the violations specifically cited herein. 

Respondent hereby waives the right to appeal the issuance, terms and conditions, 

and service of these Orders, and Respondent hereby waives any and all rights 

Respondent may have to seek administrative or judicial review of these Orders either in 

law or equity. 

Notwithstanding the preceding, Ohio EPA and Respondent agree that if these 

Orders are appealed by any other party to the Environmental Review Appeals 

Commission, or any court, Respondent retains the right to intervene and participate in 

such appeal. In such an event, Respondent shall continue to comply with these Orders 

notwithstanding such appeal and intervention unless these Orders are stayed, vacated or 

modified. 

XIII. EFFECTIVE DATE 

The effective date of these Orders is the date these Orders are entered into the 

Ohio EPA Director's journal. 

XIV. SIGNATORY AUTHORITY 

Each undersigned representative of a party to these Orders certifies that he or she 

is fully authorized to enter into these Orders and to legally bind such party to these Orders. 
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IT IS SO ORDERED AND AGREED: 

Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 

¿Ã4 2 Á

 

& 

Laurie A. Stevenson 
Director 

IT IS SO AGREED: 

Ohio Decorative Products, LLC 
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